
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 Meeting: Wednesday, 2nd November, 2022 
     at 2.00 pm (Committee Room No.4) 

 
 

A G E N D A 
PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To deal with any items which the Chair considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 15th September, 2022.  
 
 

3 - 8 



 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 7.   Work Programme Update  
  

9 - 16 

(D) 8.   Contract Management  
  

17 - 30 

(D) 9.   Service Performance  
  

31 - 48 

(D) 10.   Supported Accommodation  
  

49 - 52 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
Membership of Committee 
 
Councillors Shirley (Chairman) 

Cassidy (Vice-Chair) 
Gawne 
Hall 
Johnston 
W. McClure 
McEwan 
Morgan 
Robson 
Ronson 
C. Thomson 
 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 Katie Pepper 

Democratic Services 
Officer 
01229 876314 
kpepper@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Tuesday, 25 October 2022 
 



BOROUGH OF BARROW IN FURNESS 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
      Meeting: Thursday 15th September,2022 
      at 2.00 pm.  
 
PRESENT: -  Councillors Shirley (Chairman), Cassidy (Vice-Chairman), Assouad, 
McEwan, and C. Thomson. 
 
Officers Present: - Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and Governance), Paula Westwood 
(Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader) and Katie Pepper (Democratic and 
Electoral Services Officer). 
 
15 – Apologies for Absence 
 

Apologies for absence had been submitted from Councillors Johnston, McClure and 
Robson.  
 
Councillor Assouad had attended the meeting as substitute for Councillor Johnston. 
 
16 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 7th  July, 2022 were taken as read and confirmed. 
 
17 – Public Participation 
 
RESOLVED: - To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions had 
been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
18 – Work Programme Update  
 
The Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader had submitted a report outlining a 
summary of the progress made in respect of each topic as follows:- 
 
Flooding on Walney Promenade 
 
In October 2021, representatives from United Utilities had addressed the Committee 
and provided an update on the plans being made for the sewer network to prevent 
flooding on Walney Promenade. They had agreed to provide updates to the Committee 
as appropriate in the future as works progressed. 
 
At a previous meeting, the Committee had requested the Scrutiny and Democratic 
Services Team Leader to make contact with United Utilities to establish if they were in 
a position to provide an update. United Utilities had advised that with the area being a 
SSSI (Site of Specific Scientific Interest) site, they were not able to start the work until 
permits had been issued from Natural England and the Marine Maritime Industry. They 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



would be in touch once permits had been received and works had started, in order to 
attend the next available meeting. 
 
The Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader added that she had made contact 
with United Utilities back in March and they had informed her that they had no update 
as they still hadn’t received their permits.  
 
The Committee had requested that further contact be made with United Utilities with the 
potential of inviting them back to the Committee to provide an update.  
 
The Chair had requested that the scope of this review be extended to look at wider 
flooding of the entire coast. 
 
Discretionary Housing Fund and Supported Housing Payments 
 
At a previous meeting, the Committee had requested that contact be made with the 
Chair of the Executive Committee to obtain an update on the issue. The review had 
been paused at that time, whilst further discussions took place regarding the scope of 
the review. 
 
At the meeting on 24th March the Committee agreed that the review should continue 
and Councillor Morgan be appointed Lead Member on the Work Group. 
 
The Director of Resources had attended the meeting on 7th July to present the 
confidential Supported Accommodation report which explained how the matter had 
been dealt with through the Executive Committee. 
 
The remit of the review needed to be confirmed to enable it to be taken forward. 
 
The Committee had agreed to change the focus of this review to cover looking into the 
national legislation and potential loopholes and asked that the Director of Resources be 
invited to present an update report at the next Committee meeting. 
 
Impact of Covid-19 Going Forward 

 

The Work Group had met on 7th February. Information had been noted including: - 
 

 The number of cases in Cumbria throughout January had reduced, with the most 
significant reduction seen in the second week of January, then a steady decline 
thereafter; 

 The rolling seven day average number of cases in Barrow at the time had been 
around 500 cases per 100,000 population which was similar to the other Districts 
in Cumbria. It was envisaged that case numbers would likely remain at that level 
as the Omicron variant was highly transmissible; 

 It was anticipated that by the end of March, isolation rules would be lifted, 
although it was envisaged that PCR testing would remain in some form to test for 
new variants; 

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



 The Council’s Contact Tracing Team continue to assist the NHS Test and Trace 
System by contacting ‘hard to reach’ cases; 

 Covid Marshalls had reduced to one session per fortnight on a Saturday morning 
at the Alfred Barrow Health Centre with around 500 vaccinations each session 
plus walk-ins. 

 

At the meeting on 7th July Councillor McEwan had provided the Committee with an 
update on the most recent Covid Figures, in the week beginning 27th June Barrow had 
162 cases.  The Committee noted the case numbers and agreed the Work Group would 
continue to meet regularly. 
 
It was agreed that this review would continue. 
 

Crellin Street 
 

At a previous meeting, the Committee had agreed that a Work Group be established to 
look further into ongoing issues in the Crellin Street vicinity emanating from food 
takeaway delivery services including parking on double yellow lines, obstructing delivery 
wagons and other road users, as well as reports of residents feeling intimidated walking 
past crowds of Uber Eats Drivers. 
 

Following the initial meeting of the Work Group on 8th February, Members of the Work 
Group had requested for additional representatives to be invited to meet with them 
including Graham Barker (Head of Public Protection, Barrow Borough Council), as well 
as a representative from the Police and Cumbria County Council. 
 

At a previous meeting Councillor McEwan provided an update to the Committee stating 
that Barrow Local Committee had presented the issue to Cumbria County Council’s 
Cabinet the previous week where the Cabinet had agreed to support Barrow Local 
Committee’s request and explore the process and feasibility of adopting the DVLA 
devolved powers from the Secretary of State for Transport to take enforcement action 
on untaxed vehicles. In view of that, the Committee agreed that this review should be 
paused. 
 
It was agreed that the review remain paused. 
 
In respect of the following items, which had been added to the Work Programme for 
2022/2023 in March, the Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader stated that, in 
view of the number of ongoing items on the Work Programme and with only six months 
left in which to complete the reviews, that it may be appropriate for the Committee re-
consider and re-prioritise items for review. 
 
Customer Strategy and Action Plan 
 

At the Committee meeting on 24th March it had been agreed that a review of Customer 
Strategy and Action Plan be included in the Work Programme for 2022/23. 
 
It was agreed that this review be paused. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



Growing Forward Report and Action Plan 
 

At the Committee meeting on 24th March it had been agreed that a review of the 
Growing Forward Report and Action Plan be included in the Work Programme for 
2022/23. 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance advised the group that the Director of Resources 

had planned to present a report to the Committee at the November meeting regarding 

this review. 

It was agreed that this review by paused. 

Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy 
 

At the Committee meeting on 24th March it had been agreed that a review of the Anti-
Social Behaviour Strategy be included in the Work Programme for 2022/23. 
 

At the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 7th July the Head of People and 
Communities presented a report on the Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy. 
 
The Chair had asked if Senior Management Team could be requested to provide a press 
release to communicate to Council Tax payers, details of ongoing or planned works in 
relation to the anti-social behaviour strategy.  
 
It was agreed that Gareth Sargent of Cumbria Police and the Head of People and 
Communities be invited to the next meeting of the Committee to provide an update.  
 

Equality Strategy and Action Plan 
 

At the Committee meeting on 24th March it had been agreed that a review of Equality 
Strategy and Action Plan be included in the Work Programme for 2022/23. 
 
It was agreed that this review be paused. 
 
Changes to the Work Programme  
 
The Chair had suggested that a review into the BID be added to the programme.  This 
had been agreed by the Committee. 
 
The Committee had discussed reviewing the priorities of the work programme and it 
was,  
 

RESOLVED:- 
 

1. To note the updates on progress in respect of each of the Work Groups;  
 

2. To agree that the following reviews be paused:- 
 

 Review of Customer Strategy and Action Plan; 

 Review of the Growing Forward Report and Action Plan; 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



 Review of Equality Strategy and Action Plan; and 

 Crellin Street; 
 

3. To agree that the following reviews remained on the Work Programme:- 
 

 Discretionary Housing Payments (with amended scope outlined above); 

 Review of Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy and Action Plan; 

 Flooding on Walney Promenade (with amended scope outlined above); 

 Impact of Covid-19 Going Forward; and  
 

2. To agree that a review into the BID be added to the Work Programme. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 2.21 pm.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Wednesday 2 November, 2022 

Work Programme Update 

 
 

Report from:   Democratic Services Manager  

Report Author:  Paula Westwood 

Wards:    All Wards 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 Work Groups have been established to review the topics identified in the 

2022/2023 Work Programme.  A summary of the progress made in respect of each 

topic is detailed below. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 Members are requested to note the updates on progress and consider 

whether further action is required. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Flood Work Group 

 

 At the previous meeting, the Committee had agreed to extend the scope of the 

review to look at wider flooding of the entire coast.  A meeting of the Work Group 

took place in October with the Head of Programme Management and Climate 

Change so that the Work Group could understand the duties and responsibilities, 

along with the different organisations involved and their obligations with regards 

to flooding.  Further information has been provided in the Coastal Protection 

Briefing Note attached at Appendix 1.  The Head of Programme Management and 

Climate Change will be in attendance at the meeting to answer any questions from 

Members. 

 

Flooding on Walney Promenade 

 

 At the previous meeting, Members had requested that United Utilities be invited to 

provide an update on the plans being made for the sewer network to prevent 

flooding on Walney Promenade. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 Arrangements have been made for a United Utilities representative to attend the 

meeting to provide an update, following on from the investigatory work they have 

undertaken earlier this year. 

 

Discretionary Housing Payments 

 

At the previous meeting, the Committee had agreed to change the focus of this 

review to cover looking into the national legislation and potential loopholes and 

requested that the Director of Recourses be invited to present an update report at 

the next meeting.  There is a separate item on the agenda from the Director of 

Resources. 

 

 Review of Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy and Action Plan 

 

At the previous meeting, Members had requested Senior Management Team to 

provide a press release to communicate to Council Tax payers, details of ongoing 

or planned works in relation to the anti-social behaviour strategy.  Members had 

also requested that Gareth Sargent of Cumbria Police, together with the Head of 

People and Communities, be invited to the next meeting to provide an update. 

 

 Following consultation with Senior Management Team and the Head of People 

and Communities, I have been advised that there is multi agency work ongoing to 

address the issues previously reported in July, and at present, there are no further 

updates.  The Council is working with Partners to secure funding to assist with 

monitoring anti-social behaviour in the Town Centre; a report will be taken to 

Executive Committee prior to Christmas with an update on that.  The Head of 

People and Communities will attend Committee in the future when this piece of 

work has been finalised and there is additional information to report. 

 

 I have also been advised that corporate communications will be issued imminently 

around Halloween and safety around Bonfire Night, in partnership with the Fire 

Service and the Police. 

 

Impact of Covid-19 Going Forward 

 

The Work Group have not met since the last Committee meeting in September.  

The Head of Public Protection has advised that national and local comms were 

now focused on the Autumn Booster for both Covid and Flu and at present, there 

was nothing further to report. 

 

Barrow BID 

 

At the previous meeting it was agreed that a review of Barrow BID be added to the 

Work Programme. 

 

The Head of Regeneration in her capacity as the named Liaison Officer between 

the Borough Council and the BID will bring a report to December’s Committee 

meeting detailing the annual activity of the BID.  The BID Manager will also attend 

Page 10

Agenda Item 7



that meeting to present the Business Plan and answer any questions from 

Members. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 We do not need to undertake a consultation at this stage. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Additional information is required before we can consider alternative options. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The Scrutiny Work Programme covers all of the Council’s priorities. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  
 
No – This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 

 
Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

N/A N/A N/A 

 

Appendices 

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Coastal Protection Function Briefing Note 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

N/A N/A 

  

 
Contact Officers  

Paula Westwood Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader 

    pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk 

Page 12

Agenda Item 7

mailto:pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk


Barrow Borough Council Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Coastal Protection Function – Briefing Note 14/10/22 

Background 

Barrow Borough Council is a “coast protection authority” and a “coastal erosion risk management 

authority” under the terms of the Coastal Protection Act 1949. 

This status gives the Council powers, subject to certain conditions, to carry out coastal protection 

work for the protection of land within the Borough or for the purposes of management of coastal 

erosion risk. Under certain circumstances it is possible to acquire land compulsorily to carry out such 

works. It should be emphasised that these are permissive powers only, not duties. 

It is also a requirement that coastal protection works carried out by other parties is notified to the 

Council. 

To enable the Council to have the clearest picture of how to use powers under the act we need to 

have an understanding of coastal processes and to adopt a strategic approach to coastal 

management. The Department for Environment Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) commissioned 

Shoreline Management Plans to be developed for the coastline. These set out shoreline 

management policies over short (0-20 years), medium (20-50 years) and long timescales (up to 100 

years). These policies are used by the Environment Agency (EA) to guide approval of coastal 

management schemes and allocation of grant in aid funding to authorities. They are not statutory 

documents, but authorities are expected to refer to them when making coastal management 

decisions and determining planning permissions. 

Consultancy Support 

The management of Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management (FCERM) is in practice carried out 

through a contract with WSP (previously Capita RE&I, who were recently acquired by WSP). 

Capita/WSP have fulfilled this contract for many years and have a good local knowledge of the coast 

around the Borough. 

The contract requires WSP to carry out the following: 

1. Implement the Shoreline Management Plan 2 (SMP2) action plan and report on progress to the 
Environment Agency. 

2. Identify areas of flood and coastal erosion risk, assess those risks and make recommendations 
for their management and, subject to funding, implement the agreed management policies. 

3. Produce a 5-year rolling programme of works and studies to sufficient detail for inclusion in the 
Environment Agency medium term plan. 

4. Deliver the Walney Island Flood and Coastal Erosion Strategy Review subject to the availability of 
funding. This is now part of the Cumbria Strategy. 

5. Carry out annual survey of Coastal Assets in Schedule 1 in accordance with the Environment 
Agency (EA) Condition Assessment Manual (CAM: EA document 166_03_SD01) and produce a 
report detailing the condition of each asset and recommendations for action. Notify private 
defence owners of the need for remedial work on their structures. This will include preparing, 
administration and project management of the annual maintenance programme. 

6. Represent the client as the lead contact and participant at the North West England and North 
Wales Coastal Group and sub groups. 

7. Procure, collate and analyse the data collection for local aspects of the Cell 11 Regional 
Monitoring Strategy. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



8. Maintain the SANDS database, updating data as necessary and providing data outputs to the 
Coastal Group. 

9. Keep up to date with all current best practice in Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management. 
10. Act as the clients lead representative to liaise with other bodies including but not exclusively 

being; Environment Agency, Natural England, RSPB, CWT this will also include the public, Council 
officers and elected members. 

11. Utilise and provide updates to the EA National Coastal Erosion Risk Mapping data. 
12. Regularly monitor risk areas on the coastline such as West Shore Park and Walney landfill sites 

after significant storms with frequencies dictated by local weather. 
13. Provide responses to planning consultations relating to flood and coastal erosion risks. 

Any specific schemes to undertake additional studies or design, procurement and supervision of 

coastal works are outside of the contract with WSP and would be procured as separate projects. 

Strategy 

The Council has adopted the Cumbria Coastal Strategy. This breaks down the coast into discrete 

geographical areas, or “units”. For each unit, a strategic option is selected, based on the level of risk 

that exists, normally from one of the following: 

1. No Active Intervention 
2. Do minimum. 
3. Hold the line. 
4. Managed realignment. 

The Cumbria Coastal Strategy was adopted in 2020, and incorporated an earlier strategy for Walney 

that was adopted in 2014. The basic strategy for each unit on Walney is shown below. 

Benefit Area (Unit) Details 

1 – North Walney (North 

of West Shore Park to 

Lenny Hill) 

No Active Intervention 

2 – West Shore Park Managed Realignment - Extend the temporary ‘ad hoc’ rock 

armour along the whole frontage and maintain in the short 

term while assets are relocated. In the longer term allow 

natural processes to occur. 

3 – Earnse Point to Walk 

Hall Scar 

Maintain existing defences, subject to funding 

4 Walk Hall Scar to 

Nanny Point Scar 

No Active Intervention 

5 – Nanny Point Scar to 

Hillock Whins and Biggar 

to Tummer Hill 

Do Minimum - Create rock stockpile. Repair defences as and 

when failures occur. 

6 – Hillock Whins to 

Hare Hill 

Do Minimum - Create rock stockpile. Repair defences as and 

when failures occur. 

7 – South Walney No Active Intervention 

Page 14

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Benefit Area (Unit) Details 

8 – Vickerstown to 

North Scale 

Maintain and repair defences to implement the SMP policy of 

Hold The Line 

 

Current Projects 

There is currently no programme for major works in Barrow. However, there is a potential pipeline 

of projects as follows: 

 Grant in aid for improvements to defences at Roa Island and flood protection to the 
causeway. 

 Innovation Resilience funding through Environment Agency through the ECO-CoBS 
programme (Ecological Community Owned Coastal Buffer Strips). A project group has been 
established and the accountable body is Wyre Borough Council. An engagement officer has 
been appointed through Morecambe Bay Partnership. This will look at management of the 
salt marsh at Roa Island/Foulney Island and the management of the temporary defence at 
West Shore Park. The programme is being rebranded as Our Future Coast and is due to 
launch in January 2023. 

 A study of erosion and flood risks at Askam. 
 

ENDS 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Wednesday, 2 November 2022 

Contract Management  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The Audit and Governance Committee Combined Improvement Plan has 

identified an assurance role regarding contract management for the Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

1. It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee agree to 

incorporate contract management assurance into the Work Plan. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Audit and Governance Committee has established a Combined 

Improvement Plan which addresses recommendations from external audit, 

internal audit, the Annual Governance Statement review of governance, and the 

self-assessment of the CIPFA Financial Management Code. A copy of the 

improvement plan is attached as Appendix 1. 

 

3.2 The Plan incorporates the statutory recommendations made in relation to the 

external audit of 2020-2021 including: 

 

 Ensure members and officers have robust assurance and reporting 

arrangements in place, for managing all ongoing contracts and to enable 

appropriate and timely action to remediate any non-compliance or wider 

deficiencies 

 

3.3 The purpose of the improvement is to provide Members with compliance 

assurance and to demonstrate timely action in holding officers to account for any 

non-compliance. 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



3.4 Two actions will achieve the improvement: 

 

 Action 1 - regular progress report to the Corporate Programme Board to 

highlight any issues on the contracts register 

o Procurement and Contract Lead 

o Introduced July 2022 

 

 Schedule of significant contracts provided to the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee.  Overview and Scrutiny Committee to select those contracts to be 

reported on through the committee cycle. 

o Procurement and Contract Lead to provide contract listing 

o Heads of Service to report 

o First report December 2022 

 

3.5 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee are recommended to incorporate contract 

management assurance into the Work Plan. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The alternative option is to ask the Audit and Governance Committee to 

incorporate contract management assurance into that Work Plan. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Good governance underpins the Council Plan priorities and supports its 

objectives. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no direct financial, resource or procurement implications from the 

recommendation. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 There are no issues to raise. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 There are no equality or diversity implications from the recommendation. 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Page 18

Agenda Item 8



Failure to deliver Audit and 

Governance Combined 

Improvement Plan. 

No improvement; 

reputational risk. 

Ensure implementation 

of agreed action and 

monitoring/review of the 

Improvement Plan. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices attached to this report- 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Audit and Governance Combined 

Improvement Plan 

 

Background Documents available 

 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

 

Annual Audit and Statutory 

Recommendations 

www.barrowbc.gov.uk 

Reports to Council 18.10.22 and Audit 

and Governance 20.10.22 on 

Improvement Plan and Annual 

Governance Statement 

www.barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
 

Audit and Governance Committee Combined Improvement Plan 
 
Ref Action – (Statutory 

Recommendations) 
Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 

Success 
Commentary/Progress 

Improving 
Governance 

1. Embed and enforce the Council’s updated contract standing orders and procurement rules 
(Officers in all departments to follow and fully evidence compliance with contract standing orders on all procured 
services) 

1.1 Ensure regular refresher 
training for procuring officers. 
 
Ensure Training Video easily 
accessible on the intranet. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Blanket training 
provided March 
2022; refresher 
training provided 
ad-hoc and to 
individuals where 
needed. 
 
Recording 
available from 
September 2022. 

No. of attendees. 
 
No. of confirmed 
views. 

All procuring officers 
were offered training in 
March 2022 on the new 
procurement rules and 
procedures. 
 
Recording of the training 
offered in March 2022; 
available to all officers to 
view as a refresher and 
to new officers as part of 
the induction training for 
those involved in 
procurement. 

1.2 Ensure guidance and 
handbook up to date and any 
changes notified to all 
managers and updated on the 
intranet. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Handbook up to 
date as at 9.9.22. 

Review 
log/record. 

Guidance and Handbook 
will be reviewed quarterly 
to ensure it is kept up to 
date.  A link to the 
Handbook will be 
circulated to all officers 
when any updates have 
been applied 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action – (Statutory 
Recommendations) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

1.3 Spot Check of ordered goods 
and services made via 
intranet to ensure the 
procurement rules are being 
followed. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Quarterly - 
Ongoing 

Reduction in 
purchases made 
not following 
procurement 
rules.  

Identify areas of non-
compliance and offer 
further support/training to 
ensure all procurement 
rules are being followed. 

1.4 Training on Chest (ProActis). Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Awaiting date from 
Proactis. 

No. of attendees. All procuring officers will 
be offered training on the 
Chest e-procurement 
site, alongside this a 
refresher of the new 
procurement rules will be 
run through as well.  

Improving 
Governance 

2.Ensure members and officers have robust assurance and reporting arrangements in place, for managing all 
ongoing contracts and to enable appropriate and timely action to remediate any non-compliance or wider 
deficiencies 
(As well as members receiving compliance assurance they need to demonstrate timely action in holding officers 
to account for any non-compliance) 

2.1 Schedule of significant 
contracts provided to the 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to select those 
contracts to be reported on 
through the committee cycle. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 
 
 
Heads of Service 

In line with 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
workplan. 

N/A – no target 
no. 

Schedule provided to 
identify the scope of 
contracts; Overview and 
Scrutiny to select 
contracts; Heads of 
Service to report on 
contract management 
arrangements. 

2.2 Regular Progress Report to 
Corporate Programme Board 
to highlight any issues on the 
contracts register.  

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

Commenced July 
2022 - monthly 

Elimination of 
rolling contracts. 

Any actions to be 
identified and fed back to 
relevant responsible 
officers. 

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action – (Statutory 
Recommendations) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

2.3 Procurement exemption 
report to Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 

December 2022 N/A Report to note the 
procurement exemption 
activity for the initial 6 
months of operating 
under the new 
arrangements. 

Improving 
Governance 

3.Review the Council’s escalation arrangements up to Full Council and Overview & Scrutiny Committee to ensure 
an adequate and timely response to address significant control environmental weaknesses. 
 
(good governance arrangements via the Audit and Governance Committee to escalate ongoing significant matters 
to both Full Council and Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to demonstrate effective accountability and to drive 
timely improvements) 

3.1 Review the outstanding 
current and historic Internal 
Audit recommendations and 
establish the monitoring 
scope and reporting route 
with the chair of the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Director of 
Resources & Head 
of Legal and 
Governance 

November 2022 Reduction in the 
no. of outstanding 
recommendations; 
focus on the high 
priority 
recommendations. 

There may be a resource 
required to maintain and 
report on progress – this 
will be dependent upon 
the number of 
recommendations that 
are live and can be 
actioned. 

3.2 Report to review 
arrangements and escalation 
controls to Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

Head of Legal and 
Governance & 
Director of 
Resources 

October 2022 N/A Referral and escalation 
routes clarified; this is 
additional to the 
recommendation review 
process at 3.1. 

  

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action (Internal Audit 
Actions 2021-2022) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

1. Recruitment Review Policy of References. 
 
Review of HR recruitment 
related procedures. 

HR Manager December 2022 N/A  

2. Accounts 
Receivable 

Ensuring recovery processes 
are resumed and review of 
instalments spreadsheet to 
ensure still appropriate and 
being adhered to. 
 
Review of invoice processing 
and monitoring any reasons 
for dispute. 
 
Review of processes to 
complete previous audit 
recommendations. 

Financial Services 
Manager 

December 2022   

3. Covid Risk 
Assessment 

Review of Control Measures 
and risk assessments. 
 

Head of Asset 
Management 

  Since this review was 
undertaken, health and 
safety has been 
supported through 
external Health and 
Safety Advisors who are 
working with the Head of 
Asset Management in 
ensuring that appropriate 
Health and Safety 
Policies, and procedures 
are in place, and will be 
monitored through the 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action (Internal Audit 
Actions 2021-2022) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

Health and Safety 
Management Group. 

4. Performance 
Management 

Action being taken to review 
Performance Framework and 
associated procedures – 
Performance framework for 
2018 will be removed from the 
website and replaced with an 
updated document that 
reflects current arrangements. 
Recovery Tracker will 
continue to be published 
alongside the Growing 
Forward Report. 
More frequent reporting to 
Overview & Scrutiny. 

Director of 
Resources 

October 2022  There will be a new 
Performance 
Management Framework 
developed for 
Westmorland and 
Furness Council. 

5. Insurance Contract Management 
Checklists – process revised 
and updated procedures 
circulated  
Copy of Insurance Policies to 
be filed with Legal Services. 
Contract Register available on 
website and to staff and 
public. 

Director of 
Resources 

July 2022  Complete 

6. Housing – 
Staircase 
cleaning 

The contract register will be a 
standing item on the MT 
project board to provide 
further measures to ensure 
that appropriate measures 

Procurements and 
Contract Lead 

Immediate  The recommendations 
which relate to matters 
which cannot be undone 
are noted. 

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action (Internal Audit 
Actions 2021-2022) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

can be taken to ensure that 
any time constraints can be 
identified and managed 
appropriately. 

The procurement reset is 
intended to address audit 
concerns with regards to 
procurement and this will 
be tested in future audits. 

7. Procurement Explanation have been 
provided as requested. 
Management Team have 
been aware of auditor 
concerns from these and 
previous audits and have 
taken steps to address these.  
During 2021, a Procurement 
Review was undertaken by 
STAR procurement, a local 
authority shared service who 
are national leaders in 
procurement and shared 
services who work with 
organisations to deliver real 
and tangible transformation 
and approvements.  The 
review has led to a revised 
Procurement Strategy 
adopting in January 2022 and 
new contract standing orders 
and revised 
guidance/thresholds which 
have been implemented since 
1 April 2022.  Training for 

Management Team 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Complete  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action (Internal Audit 
Actions 2021-2022) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

procuring officers was 
provided through March 2022. 
 
The compliance requirements 
from previous audits were 
clarified in the procurement 
review/reset of 1 April 2022 
and was emphasised as part 
of the training delivered in 
March 2022. 
A new contract is being 
prepared for seasonal baskets 
but this was not completed by 
the December 31st 
implementation date because 
the resource was diverted to 
other activities. This has been 
extended for another season 
to allow planting for the 
spring/summer baskets and 
summer barrier baskets until 
the end of September. This 
was reported to Executive 
Committee in July 2022 and a 
tender specification is 
currently being drawn up prior 
to the tender being issued. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of Operations 
Tender current 
being readvertised 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 2022 
 

8. Catering and 
Cleaning at 
the forum 

Up to date contract register 
made available to the public – 
complete. 

Procurement and 
Contract Lead 
 

  The majority of 
recommendations relate 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Ref Action (Internal Audit 
Actions 2021-2022) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

 
Ongoing management of 
Contract 
 

Head of Visitor and 
Economy 

to matters which cannot 
be undone. 
The procurement reset is 
intended to address audit 
concerns with regards to 
procurement and this will 
be tested in future audits. 
 
Calculation of Annual 
Commission payment 
was reviewed and initial 
action completed, and 
will be kept under review 
for the period of the 
contract. 

9. Cleaning of 
Barrow Town 
Hall and 
Associated 
buildings 

Ongoing management of 
contract 
 

Head of Asset 
Management 

  The majority of 
recommendations relate 
to matters which cannot 
be undone. 
The procurement reset is 
intended to address audit 
concerns with regards to 
procurement and this will 
be tested in future audits. 

 

Ref Action (Internal Audit 
Actions 2019-2020) 

Responsible Lead Due Date Measure of 
Success 

Commentary/Progress 

1. Leasing Phoenix Centre  Commercial Estate 
Manager 

  Lease arrangements are 
under consideration 

 

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



FM Code Improvements from 2021-2022 
 

Requirement Improvements 

The responsibilities of the chief finance officer and leadership team 

The leadership team can demonstrate that the services 
provided by the authority provide value for money. 

Improvements are as outlined in the Council’s response to the Statutory 
Recommendations of the appointed auditor. 

The authority complies with the CIPFA Statement on the Role of 
the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) in Local Government (2016). 

Recruit to complete the Finance establishment to provide the CFO with 
sufficient and relevant resources. 

Governance and financial management style 

The Council applies CIPFA/SOLACE 
"Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 
Framework (2016)". 

Where reviews of the corporate governance arrangements reveal 
improvement recommendations, action is planned that will ensure 
effective governance in future. 

The Financial Management style of the Council supports 
financial sustainability. 

Refresher training for officers with financial responsibilities has been 
identified with the outcome of improving financial literacy and 
strengthening the accountability of budget managers and senior officers, 
which supports financial sustainability. 

Medium to long-term financial management 

The authority has carried out a credible and transparent 
financial resilience assessment. 

Make better use of benchmarking and the CIPFA resilience index when 
shaping the MTFP. 

The authority understands its prospects for financial 
sustainability in the longer term and has reported this clearly to 
members. 

Formalise long term financial planning/modelling. 

The authority complies with the CIPFA Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities. 

The narrative in the capital strategy could be enhanced further with 
linkage to the Strategic Asset Management Plan. 

The authority has a rolling multi-year medium-term financial 
plan consistent with sustainable service plans. 

The Corporate Landlord approach will be implemented from 2022. 

Monitoring financial performance 

The leadership team takes action using reports, enabling it to 
identify and correct emerging risks to its budget strategy and 
financial sustainability. 

The Council is refreshing the service performance collection methodology. 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



Requirement Improvements 

The chief finance officer has personal responsibility for ensuring 
that the statutory accounts provided to the local authority 
comply with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom. 

The Council will prepare the Accounts within statutory deadlines and 
working papers will be produced to a high standard. The Council will 
continue close working with the external auditors to implement any audit 
recommendations. 

The presentation of the final outturn figures and variations from 
budget allow the leadership team to make strategic financial 
decisions. 

The Council will continue to review the format and usefulness of its 
performance reporting. 

 
 

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Wednesday, 2 November 2022 

Service Performance  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 This report contains service performance for the year April 2021 to March 2022, 

and for April to June 2022 where that is available. 

 

1.2 The service performance framework has been reviewed to clarify the indicators 

reported in the annual Statement of Accounts; performance against corporate 

strategic priorities is reported within the Growing Forward report. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee receive the 

Service Performance report.  

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The service performance framework has been reviewed to clarify the indicators 

reported separately to the strategic priorities reported as the Growing Forward 

report. 

 

3.2 The framework is attached as Appendix 1 and aims to define each indicator, to 

note the source of the data, any target in place where that is relevant, and the 

responsible officer. 

 

3.3 This report contains the service performance for the financial year 2021-2022 

and quarter 1 of 2022-2023 where this is available. 

 

Planning Applications 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



3.4 Planning applications have a nationally set target for major applications 

processed within 13 weeks of 60%, and other applications within 8 weeks of 

70%. 

 

3.5 Performance is measured across a two-year period and at 31 March 2022 and 

30 June 2022, the major applications were 73.68% within 13 weeks and the 

others 74.26% within 8 weeks. 

 

Food Safety Inspections 

 

3.6 The food safety inspections were reset post-COVID by the Food Standards 

Agency. 

 

3.7 The inspection regime is a phased approach based on the Categories of the 

establishment, with new businesses highlighted as a priority. 

 

3.8 In accordance with the Food Standards Agency recovery plan all ‘A’ rated 

premises received an on-site intervention, in addition 7 out of 10 ‘B’ rated 

premises received an on-site intervention, along with 29 ‘C’ rated, 29 ‘D’ rated 

and 51 ‘E’ rated premises receiving an intervention. 

 

3.9 Achievement of the recovery plan is better suited to an annual report. 

 

Forum Theatre Attendance 

 

3.10 There were 23,742 attendees for 2021-2022; recovery from COVID restrictions 

impacted the programme. 

 

3.11 For quarter 1 there were 12,176 attendees. 

 

Disabled Facilities Grants Awarded 

 

3.12 During 2021-2022 104 grants were awarded; for quarter 1, 41 grants were 

awarded. 

 

3.13 From December 2022 the Council appointed a second Housing Grants Officer, 

and increased the non‐means tested limit of grant to £10,000. 
 

Operations 

 

3.14 There are several performance indicators for Operational Services and 2021-

2022 is shown below; performance for 2022-2023 is not yet available: 

 

 Playground maintenance inspections 100% 

 Waste containers delivered within 7 working days 73% 

 Assisted list waste collections missed 0.11% 

 Fly tips collected within 1 working day of being reported 67% 

Page 32

Agenda Item 9



 Percentage of missed waste or recycling collections 4.53% 

 

3.15 There is also an indicator for the percentage of household waste sent for 

recycling and the data for 2021-0222 is not yet available. 

 

Corporate Complaints 

 

3.16 The percentage of corporate complaints dealt with within the timescales 

assigned to the stages was 64% for 2021-2022; an analysis is attached as 

Appendix 2. 

 

3.17 For quarter 1 of 2022-2023 performance is at 75%. 

 

3.18 Complaints handling training is to be provided by the Local Government 

Ombudsman in November/December 2022. 

 

Housing Benefits 

 

3.19 With Universal Credit as the route for support to working age claimants, the 

legacy benefit claims are limited to the more complex areas of 

specified/supported accommodation and temporary accommodation, and all 

pension age claimants. 

 

3.20 The average time to process a new claim across 2021-2022 was 30 days and for 

quarter 1 2022-2023 was 27 days. 

 

3.21 The average time to process a change in circumstances across 2021-2022 was 

5 days and for quarter 1 2022-2023 was 10 days – there is a significant bulk of 

transactions in the last quarter of the year; at the same time last year 

performance was at 11 days. 

 

3.22 The Revenues and Benefits Department have managed the Council’s business 

support grants, extended Business Rate relief, Council Tax relief and Self-

isolation Payments through 2021-2022 which hugely increased workloads. 

 

3.23 During 2022-2023 Revenues and Benefits have managed the Energy Rebate 

schemes. 

 

3.24 There are several vacancies within the service and agency workers are currently 

engaged and a document management automation is currently being 

implemented. 

 

Revenues 

 

3.25 As noted in the Housing Benefits section, the additional work from COVID and 

the Energy Rebate schemes have impacted performance. 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 9



3.26 For Council Tax 2021-2022, the Council achieved 95.35% in-year collection; 

recovery of the balances owed continues beyond the billing year. 

 

3.27 For quarter 1 2022-2023 collection is at 28.61% (2021-2022 was 28.67%). 

 

3.28 For Business Rates 2021-2022 achieved 97.94% in-year collection; quarter 1 

was 2022-2023 34.46% (2021-2022 was 26.1%). 

 

3.29 The collection of Business Rates is ahead of previous years but that can be 

influenced by the major ratepayer’s payment dates changing even slightly over a 

month-end. 

 

Absence Management 

 

3.30 Absence management performance is reported as an average over the 

workforce – that is not to infer that all staff were absent through illness, it is a 

standard calculation. 

 

3.31 The average number of days lost to long term sickness for 2021-2022 was 9.15; 

for quarter 1 2022-2023 this was 2.74 days (2021-2022 quarter 1 was 1.76 

days). 

 

3.32 The average number of days lost to short term sickness for 2021-2022 was 2.4; 

for quarter 1 2022-2023 this was 0.56 days (2021-2022 quarter 1 was 0.2 days). 

 

Conclusion 

 

3.33 The service performance is presented for noting and should the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee wish to delve into any area of performance, the appropriate 

Head of Service shall be instructed to report to or attend the committee meeting. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternatives to present as the report is for noting. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Service performance #Provide reference/links to council plan priorities of People, 

Place and Prosperity – include any health, social, economic and environment 

(including climate change) impacts 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no direct financial, resource or procurement implications from the 

recommendation. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 9



 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from the report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 There are no implications to raise. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 There are no equality or diversity implications from the recommendation. 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Inadequate service 

performance and service 

provision. 

Impact on customers; 

reputational risk. 

Regular monitoring and 

positive action to 

address performance. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices attached to this report- 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Service Performance Framework 

2 Complaints Annual Report 

 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 9

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

 
Service Performance Framework 

 
 

 
 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Service Performance Framework 

Version: 1 

Author: Director of Resources 

Approved by: Director of Resources 

Date Approved: October 2022 

Review Date: April 2023 

Page 37

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Page 1 

1 
Background 
 
1. The Council’s Performance Framework has been reviewed to clarify those 

service indicators that are to be reported upon. 
 
2. This framework does not include the matters contained within the Growing 

Forward Report which seeks to report upon corporate strategic progress. 
 

3. This framework covers service performance and takes the form of a framework 
adopted by management to provide the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with 
regular reporting; a new Policy has not been established due to the closeness of 
vesting day and the introduction of the Westmorland and Furness Council 
performance monitoring arrangements. 

 
Responsibilities 

 
4. The Council Plan is approved by Full Council and contains the objectives 

required to achieve the key priorities; delivery of the priorities is the responsibility 
of Members and senior management. 

 
5. Service performance represents those areas of the Council’s operations that are 

a health check on service delivery; service performance is the responsibility of 
heads of service. 

 
6. Reporting of service performance goes to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

throughout the year and is included in the Statement of Accounts narrative report 
at the end of the financial year. 

 
7. The methodology for each area reported is contained in this framework and data 

is collated for reporting by the Director of Resources, if the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee wish to delve into any area of performance, the Head of Service shall 
report to or attend the committee meeting. 

 
8. The indicators in the current set were established in 2017 and whilst the set 

remains unchanged in the absence of a Policy reset, the context surrounding 
some of the indicators has changed. 

 
Planning Applications 
 
9. Planning authorities are set a performance target by government for the 

determination of applications, which is divided into two categories, major and 
other applications. 

 
10. The targets are major 60% within 13 weeks and others 70% in 8 weeks.  In 

extreme circumstances of poor performance, an authority can be taken into 
special measures as defined in section 62A of the 1990 Act.  This would mean 
that applicants had the option of applying to the Planning Inspectorate instead of 
the Council.  

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Page 2 

2 
11. Government measures performance over a two-year period, currently 1 October 

2021 to 30 September 2023. 
 

12. Performance data is extracted from the planning application system and is 
published on the Council’s Planning Hub. 

 
13. Responsible Officer: Head of Development Management. 

 
Food Safety Inspections 

 
14. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the restrictions placed on businesses 471 

inspections were due in 2021-2022, this included new unrated premises and 
those overdue from 2020-2021. 

 
15. In June 2021 the Food Standards Agency (FSA) set out their expectations for the 

delivery of local authorities’ food safety controls from July 2021 to 2023-2024.   
 

16. This recovery plan provided a framework for re-starting programmed food 
inspections in line with the Food Law Codes of Practice (for England, Wales and 
Northern Ireland) for new food establishments and for high-risk and/or non-
compliant establishments while providing flexibility for lower risk establishments:  

 

 
  

Page 39

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Page 3 

3 
17. All Food Safety interventions are recorded in a Management Information System.  

Premises due for inspection are ‘tagged’ for the financial year to enable reporting.  
New businesses are added to intervention programme throughout the year.  

 
18. Responsible Officer: Head of Public Protection. 
 
 
 
Forum Theatre Attendance 
 
19. The attendance at shows held in the Forum are recorded in a computerised 

booking system and are relatively simple to report upon and demonstrate the use 
of the venue. 

 
20. Responsible Officer: Head of Visitor Economy and Culture. 

 
Disabled Facility Grants 

 
21. The Disabled Facility Grants awarded are recorded in a master spreadsheet of all 

applications that the Grant Officers constantly update. 
 
22. The Council receives government funding to distribute under the provisions of the 

Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996, and a locally 
approved policy which has introduced discretions to increase uptake. 

 
23. Responsible Officer: Head of Programme Management and Climate Change. 
 
Playground Inspections 
 
24. The Council’s playgrounds are inspected by a contracted third party. 
 
25. The inspections are recorded in the contractor’s software that is accessed by the 

Head of Operational Services and performance is monitored in the contract 
meetings. 

 
26. Responsible Officer: Head of Operational Services. 
 
Waste and Recycling 
 
27. These performance targets were established by the Council in April 2017; these 

continue unchanged through the change in service delivery (direct delivery from 
10 October 2022). 

 
28. The data to measure performance is extracted from the Customer Relationship 

Management (CRM) system. 
 

29. The performance indicators are: 
 

 Waste containers delivered within 7 working days  

 Assisted list waste collections missed 

Page 40

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Page 4 

4 
 Fly tips collected within 1 working day of being reported 

 Percentage of missed waste or recycling collections 

 Percentage of household waste sent for recycling 
 

30. Responsible Officer: Head of Operational Services. 
 
 
 

Complaints 
 
31. The Council has a Complaints Policy and uses a corporate complaint handling 

process. 
 
32. There is an informal service rectification stage prior to a formal stage 1 which 

triggers an investigation, and formal stage 2 which triggers an appeal. 
 

33. Complainants that remain dissatisfied can address their issues to the Local 
Government Ombudsman once the Council’s stages are complete. 

 
34. Complaints, compliments and Local Government Ombudsman data is reported 

annually to the Audit and Governance Committee and the Senior Management 
Team. 

 
35. The complaints are logged in a central system and are held on file within 

Democratic Services. 
 

36. Responsible Officer: Head of Democratic and Electoral Services. 
 
Housing Benefit Claims 
 
37. The average time taken to process new Housing Benefit applications and 

changes in circumstances are reported from the date stamps contained in the 
Benefits System. 

 
38. The Council administers Housing Benefit on behalf of the Department of Works 

and Pensions (DWP), and the performance data is extracted and securely 
transmitted to enable the DWP to monitor performance. 

 
39. The Council has a combined Revenues and Benefits Service which is a common 

approach; since 2020 there have been new demands placed upon this Service to 
administer mandatory and discretionary COVID-19 business grants, mandatory 
and discretionary COVID-19 rate reliefs, self-isolation payments, and the energy 
rebate. 

 
40. Responsible Officer: Head of Revenues and Benefits. 
 
Council Tax and Business Rates 
 
41. The Council’s budget relies upon local taxes and the cashflow with the major 

preceptors also relies upon local taxes being collected in real terms. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Page 5 

5 
 
42. The percentage of Council Tax and Business Rates due for the year that is 

collected in-year is the performance measure. 
 

43. The percentage for in-year monitoring is different to the overall expected 
collection rate which includes payments received in later years. 

 
44. Responsible Officer: Head of Revenues and Benefits. 
Absence Management 
 
45. The Council recognises its responsibilities in promoting the good health of its staff 

and that doing so is likely to lead to a workforce who will be more productive and 
who are better able to lead full and satisfying working lives. 

 
46. The Council is committed to promoting healthy living for all staff and providing 

facilities to encourage this, examples include: the provision of a confidential 
Occupational Health Service; ergonomic assessments to ensure the working 
environment and equipment used is suitable; regular eye tests for users of 
display screen equipment; and the provision of a confidential counselling service. 

 
47. The average long term and separate short term absence position is monitored by 

the Senior Management Team. 
 

48. Responsible Officer: Head of HR. 
 

Service Performance Indicators 
 

Description Head of Service 

Planning decisions determined within set timescale – 
major applications 

Development Management 

Planning decisions determined within set timescale – 
other applications 

Development Management 

Food safety inspections Public Protection 

Forum theatre attendance Culture & Visitor Economy 

Number of disabled facilities grants awarded 
Programme Management & 
Climate Change 

Playground maintenance inspections Operations 

Waste containers delivered within 7 working days  Operations 

Assisted list waste collections missed Operations 

Fly tips collected within 1 working day of being 
reported 

Operations 

Percentage of missed waste or recycling collections Operations 

Percentage of household waste sent for recycling Operations 

Corporate complaints dealt with within timescale 
Democratic & Electoral 
Services 

Average time to process new housing benefit claims Revenues & Benefits 

Average time to process housing benefit claims 
changes 

Revenues & Benefits 

Council tax collected Revenues & Benefits 

Page 42

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Page 6 

6 
Business rates collected Revenues & Benefits 

Long term sickness averaged per employee HR 

Short term sickness averaged per employee HR 

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Katie Pepper, Democratic and Electoral Services Officer 
October 2022 

 

 

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL COMPLAINTS STATISTICS 2021/2022 

 

Below is a table showing the total number of complaints received during 2021/22 (April, 

2021– March, 2022). 

Complaints Table 2021/2022 

 Quarter 1 
1st Apr 2021 – 
30th June 2021 

Quarter 2 
1st July 2021 
– 30th Sept 

2021 

Quarter 3 
1st Oct 2021 – 
31st Dec 2021 

Quarter 4 
1st Jan 2022 – 
31st Mar 2022 

Total 
Number of 

Stage 1 
Complaints 

 
4 

 
18 

 
15 

 
20 

Total 
Number of 

Appeal 
Complaints 

 
0 

 
5 

 
2 

 
5 

 

 

A table showing the number of complaints received in 2020/21 during the same period 

for comparison is as follows:- 

Comparison Table 2020/2021 

 Quarter 1 
1st  Apr 2020– 
30th June 2020 

Quarter 2 
1st July 2020 
– 30th Sept 

2020 

Quarter 3 
1st Oct 2020 – 
31st Dec 2020 

Quarter 4 
1st Jan 2021 – 
31st Mar 2021 

Total 
Number of 

Stage 1 
Complaints 

 
11 

 
14 

 
8 

 
11 

Total 
Number of 

Stage 2 
Complaint 

 
2 

 
2 

 
1 

 
2 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Katie Pepper, Democratic and Electoral Services Officer 
October 2022 

 

STAGE 1 COMPLAINTS BY DEPARTMENT 2021/2022 

 

Department Total 
Number of 
Complaints 

Upheld Not 
Upheld 

Partly 
Upheld 

Ongoing Rejected/ 
Withdrawn 

Streetcare 18 15 2 1 0 0 

Council Tax  14 3 6 5 0 0 

Housing 4 1 3 0 0 0 

Forum 1 1 0 0 0 0 

Parking 1 1 0 0 0 0 

Planning 4  4  0 0 

Public 
Protection 

5 1 3 1 0 0 

Revs and 
Bens 

9 3 6 0 0 0 

Grants 1 0 1 0 0 0 

TOTALS 57 25 25 7 0 0 

 

 

PERCENTAGE OF STAGE 1 COMPLAINTS UPHELD, NOT 

UPHELD, PARTLY UPHELD, ONGOING OR 

REJECTED/WITHDRAWN 

 

 

 

 

 

Upheld
44%

Not Upheld
44%

Partly 
Upheld

12%

Ongoing
0%

Rejected/ 
Withdrawn

0%

Stage 1 2021/22

Page 46

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



Katie Pepper, Democratic and Electoral Services Officer 
October 2022 

 

APPEAL STAGE COMPLAINTS BY DEPARTMENT 2021/2022  

 

Department Total 
Number of 
Complaints 

Upheld Not 
Upheld 

Partly 
Upheld 

Ongoing Rejected/ 
Withdrawn 

Council Tax 4 2 2 0 0 0 

Streetcare 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Housing 2 0 2 0 0 0 

Planning 1 0 1 0 0 0 

Revs and 
Bens 

3 0 3 0 0 0 

Public 
Protection 

1 0 1 0 0 0 

Grants 1 0 1 0 0 0 

TOTAL 12 2 10 0 0 0 

 

 

PERCENTAGE OF APPEAL STAGE COMPLAINTS UPHELD, 

NOT UPHELD, PARTLY UPHELD, ONGOING OR 

REJECTED/WITHDRAWN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Upheld
17%

Not Upheld
83%

Partly Upheld
0%

Ongoing
0%

Rejected/ 
Withdrawn

0%

Appeal Stage 
2021/22

Page 47

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Wednesday, 2 November 2022 

Supported Accommodation  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The Council is responsible for administering the Housing Benefit regulations on 

behalf of the Department of Works and Pensions. 

 

1.2 The determination of Housing Benefit claims is prescribed with external routes 

for redress where that is required.  

 

1.3 The Council has a duty to prevent homelessness under the Homelessness 

Reduction Act 2017. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee:- 

 

1. Receive the report; and 

2. Consider the direction of the review and establish any requirements. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Council administers the Housing Benefit regulations on behalf of the 

Department of Works and Pensions (DWP) as this is a district council function 

within a two-tier area. 

 

3.2 Specified or exempt accommodation is generally referred to as supported 

accommodation for Housing Benefit purposes and is provided by non-profit 

making organisations as landlords. 

 

3.3 For those living in supported accommodation Housing Benefit covers the rent 

element and eligible service charges (eligibility is set out in the DWP 

regulations); payment is referred to as enhanced housing benefit. 

Page 49

Agenda Item 10



 

3.4 For supported accommodation Housing Benefit claims, the Council must have 

the evidence to support their determination that: 

 

 the landlord falls within the prescribed categories – non-metropolitan 

county council, housing association that does not trade for profit, 

registered charity or non-profit making voluntary organisation, and 

 the landlord or person acting on its behalf is responsible for providing 

care, support, or supervision beyond the level any tenant would expect 

from any landlord, and 

 the tenant has an actual or potential need for the available support which 

must relate to giving advice and assistance to the claimant in coping with 

practicalities of everyday life, and 

 the care, support or supervision is an obligation of the landlord, and 

 there is an explanation about how much the ineligible service charge is 

and how it is funded – if there is no separate identifiable funding stream 

there is a deduction from the eligible rent to cover the cost of the 

provision. 

 

3.5 The Council is able to determine a reduced Housing Benefit payment or to pay 

no enhancement where the criteria are not met; the Council must disclose to the 

landlord the reason for any reduction. 

 

3.6 Where no enhancement is paid, the Local Housing Allowance (LHA or rent 

element) is paid. 

 

3.7 There are several supported accommodation providers within the Borough, 

particularly within Barrow-in-Furness, which brings a high volume of claims. 

 

3.8 Gathering and verifying the evidence to determine such claims is far greater than 

an individual claimant application and the Housing Benefit department have 

established systems and processes to cover schemes where that is possible; 

scheme means a particular landlord and a particular building or property. 

 

3.9 The level of care provided to those in supported accommodation is not for the 

Council to determine, but for the Housing Benefit determination the care must be 

needed and goes sufficiently beyond what any non-supported tenant would 

receive. 

 

3.10 Where enhanced Housing Benefit is not paid or is reduced from the amount 

claimed, the landlord may appeal to the Tribunal Service. 

 

3.11 The Council and the landlord may proceed to the High Court following the 

tribunal, but that is uncommon. 

 

Page 50

Agenda Item 10



3.12 The conflict with the Homeless Duty potentially arises where the enhanced 

Housing Benefit does not meet the DWP criteria and payment is reduced or only 

LHA can be paid; this may lead to individuals being turned away from 

accommodation and presenting as homeless. 

 

3.13 The Council cannot pay enhanced Housing Benefit pending a tribunal decision 

as to knowingly pay without the supporting evidence may remove the Council’s 

entitlement to subsidy from the DWP, and could bring into question the Council’s 

ability to administer the regulations. 

 

3.14 Where supported accommodation is provided by an organisation that is not a 

Housing Association, there is a limitation on the DWP subsidy which results in 

the Council directly funding the difference. 

 

3.15 This is a budget impact the Council has no control over from a Housing Benefit 

perspective. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant as this report is for noting. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternatives to recommend as this report if for noting. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The Housing Benefit service and the Homelessness service both aim to support 

those households on low income and in need of support. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no direct financial, resource or procurement implications from the 

recommendation. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from the report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 The Housing Benefit and Homelessness services will continue to be provided by 

Westmorland and Furness Council. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 There are no equality and diversity implications from the recommendation. 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Page 51

Agenda Item 10



Maladministration of Housing 

Benefit. 

Significant financial 

loss; reputational 

damage. 

Robust systems, 

processes and 

procedures.  DWP 

sample re-work of 

determinations and 

DWP Housing Benefit 

accuracy review. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Compliance with 

Homelessness Duty. 

Increased service 

demand; additional 

costs to meet capacity. 

Links with providers and 

knowledge of 

accommodation and 

providers. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Page 52

Agenda Item 10

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Work Programme Update
	Appendix 1 - Coastal Protection Function Briefing Note

	8 Contract Management
	Enc. 1 for Contract Management

	9 Service Performance
	Enc. 1 for Service Performance
	Complaints Annual Report Final

	10 Supported Accommodation

